MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE DEVELOPMENT CONTROL COMMITTEE HELD IN THE COUNCIL CHAMBER. WALLFIELDS, HERTFORD ON

WEDNESDAY 9 NOVEMBER 2011 AT

7.00 PM

Councillor W Ashley (Chairman). PRESENT:

Councillors D Andrews, E Bedford, S Bull, A Burlton, Mrs R Cheswright, J Demonti, G Lawrence, M Newman, S Rutland-Barsby,

T Page and J Taylor.

ALSO PRESENT:

Councillors S Basra, E Buckmaster, P Moore and P Ruffles.

OFFICERS IN ATTENDANCE:

Glyn Day - Principal Planning

Enforcement

Officer

Simon Drinkwater - Director of

Neighbourhood

Services

Peter Mannings - Democratic

Services Assistant

Kevin Steptoe Head of Planning

and Building

Control

Alison Young - Development

Control Manager

403 **APOLOGIES**

Apologies for absence were submitted on behalf of Councillors M Alexander, G Jones and B Wrangles. It was noted that Councillors D Andrews, E Bedford and T Page were substituting for Councillors M Alexander, B Wrangles and G Jones respectively.

404 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman welcomed the press and public to the meeting and those who were watching the live webcast.

The Chairman thanked the Director of Neighbourhood Services for the Members' Code of Conduct Training that had been held prior to this meeting of the Committee.

The Chairman advised that application 3/11/1470/FP – Extension of existing horticultural nursery site, including provision of 2 no. blocks of polytunnels, growing areas, rainwater lagoon, new vehicular access and internal track for Joseph Rochford Gardens Ltd had been withdrawn from the agenda.

The Chairman advised the Committee that Building Control Officers would give a half an hour to 45 minute presentation in the Council Chamber prior to the Committee meeting on 7 December 2011.

The Chairman reminded the Committee of the Development Control open morning due to be held on 2 December 2011, where Members would have the opportunity to meet with Officers to improve their understanding of the application process.

The Chairman requested that Members inform him or the Head of Planning and Building Control of any additional items they would like covered in the Member Training due to be held prior to the Committee meeting on 4 January 2012.

405 <u>DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST</u>

Councillor T Page declared a personal and prejudicial interest in application 3/11/1421/FP in that he lived within earshot of the activities that would be in place on the site should this application be approved. He addressed the Committee as a local ward Member and then left the

room during consideration of this matter.

Councillor S Bull declared a personal interest in application 3/11/1280/OP in that he was an acquaintance of the applicant and owner of the adjacent Tyre and Exhaust Business.

406 MINUTES

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that the Minutes of the meetings held on 12 and 26 October 2011 be confirmed as correct records and signed by the Chairman.

3/11/1225/FP - CHANGE OF USE FOR A TEMPORARY PERIOD FROM 5 JANUARY 2012 TO 5 JANUARY 2014 OF FORMER BARN TO A FUNCTION ROOM, REPLACEMENT ROOF TO MAIN BARN WITH PHOTO VOLTAIC PANELS COVERING THE WHOLE OF THE SOUTH FACING ROOF SLOPE, TOILETS, REFRIGERATORS, AND OFFICE PROVIDED WITHIN THE ADJACENT POLE BARN AT TEWIN BURY FARM HOTEL, HERTFORD ROAD, TEWIN, AL6 0JB FOR MR V WILLIAMS

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, in respect of application 3/11/1225/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

The Chairman advised that the local ward Member was in support of this application.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee accepted the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement pursuant to Section 106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990, application 3/11/1225/FP be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

RESOLVED – that, subject to the applicant or successor in title signing a legal agreement pursuant to S106 of the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 in respect of application 3/11/1225/FP, planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

408 3/11/1492/FP - CONSTRUCTION OF 9 NO. 2/3 BEDROOM HOLIDAY LODGES, OFFICE, LARDER AND PARKING AT PALLETTS WOOD, HOOKS CROSS FARM, OAKS CROSS, WATTON AT STONE, SG14 3RY FOR MR DAN COLLINS

Mr Dan Collins addressed the Committee in support of the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1492/FP, planning permission be refused for the reasons now detailed.

The Director advised that the Landscape Officer was not supportive of the application in respect of the impact on trees on the site. Members were advised that County Highways were now satisfied that with the provision of further details in respect of access arrangements, an acceptable outcome could be achieved.

As such, Members were advised that, if they were minded to refuse the application, the third reason for refusal was no longer required.

Councillor J Taylor stated that the site was in the Green Belt and she was minded to vote against this application. She commented that the fourth reason for refusal contained the issues that were particularly relevant in support of her concerns.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee accepted the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that application 3/11/1492/FP be refused planning permission for the reasons now

detailed.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1492/FP, planning permission be refused for the first, second and fourth reasons detailed in the report now submitted.

409 3/11/0236/SV - MODIFICATION OF SECTION 106
UNILATERAL UNDERTAKING (REF 3/07/1546/FO) TO OMIT
CLAUSE 5.1 REMOVING THE REQUIREMENT TO
PROVIDE A CAR CLUB AT FORMER TXU SITE, MEAD
LANE, HERTFORD, SG13 7AH FOR WESTERN HOMES
(HOUSING) LTD

Hertford Town Councillor Matthew McCormick addressed the Committee in opposition to the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/0236/SV, a variation of the Section 106 unilateral undertaking (reference 3/11/0236/SV) dated 21 January 2008 pursuant to planning permission 3/07/1546/FO to omit Clause 5.1 removing the requirement to provide a Car Club, be granted subject to the new clauses detailed in the report now submitted.

The Director advised that Officers were able to support this application to vary the legal agreement so that the requirement for the provision of a car club was removed. Members were advised that the car club provision would be replaced by a requirement to provide two additional parking spaces for the residents of Spencer Street.

Members were referred to the additional representations schedule in respect of the payment of £5,556 to Hertfordshire County Council. The Director advised that the Officers' recommendation no longer needed to include the provision of a financial contribution towards the provision of a car club in Mead Lane.

Councillor S Rutland-Barsby expressed every sympathy with the concerns of Councillor McCormick. She referred to the problems resulting from the actions of the appeal inspector and also the fact that Spencer Street was not an adopted road. She also commented that it did not seem proper that every resident had to agree before parking restrictions could be put in place.

Councillor M Newman stated that refusing this application would not solve the parking problems on Spencer Street. He commented on whether it would be possible to place on obligation on the developer to implement a private parking scheme solely for the residents of Spencer Street.

The Director advised that, as with any obligation, Officers would have to ensure this was reasonable and could reasonably be associated with a development. Officers explained that no evidence had been put forward that the parking problems on Spencer Street were as a result of the Elder Court development and would not have occurred in any event.

The Director stressed that it would be reasonable to assume there was considerable parking pressure in this area due to the proximity of nearby employment and Hertford East train station.

Members were advised that it would be unreasonable to impose an obligation on a developer without the clear evidence of a link between the Elder Court development and parking problems in Spencer Street. Members were reminded that any agreement would have to have the unanimous agreement of all the residents and associated landowners and owners of property.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee accepted the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that in respect of application 3/11/0236/SV, a variation of the Section 106 unilateral undertaking (reference 3/11/0236/SV) dated 21 January 2008 pursuant to planning permission 3/07/1546/FO to omit Clause 5.1 removing the requirement to provide a Car Club, be granted subject to the first clause detailed in the report now

submitted.

RESOLVED – that, in respect of application 3/11/0236/SV, a variation of the Section 106 unilateral undertaking (reference 3/11/0236/SV) dated 21 January 2008 pursuant to planning permission 3/07/1546/FO to omit Clause 5.1 removing the requirement to provide a Car Club, be granted subject to the first clause detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/0370/FP - SEPARATION OF PLOTS 7 AND 8 SHOWN AS A PAIR OF SEMI-DETACHED DWELLINGS ON THE APPROVED SCHEME UNDER REF. 3/09/1370/FP TO PROVIDE 2NO. DETACHED DWELLINGS. ALTERATIONS AND EXTENSIONS TO ENABLE USE OF ROOF SPACES FOR ADDITIONAL ACCOMMODATION TO INCLUDE 2NO. ADDITIONAL BEDROOMS FOR EACH DWELLING AT LAND AT, GRAVELLY LANE, BRAUGHING FOR LINDEN HOMES

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, subject to the applicant entering into a deed of variation in respect of the Section 106 legal obligation entered into for the planning permission granted for 17 dwellings under LPA reference 3/09/1370/FP to cover the matters now detailed, in respect of application 3/11/0370/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

Councillor Mrs R Cheswright expressed her disappointment that, once again, there was an application to separate plots of land for two large 5 bedroom houses on this site when Braughing needed smaller 2 to 3 bedroom houses.

The Director advised that this was not another application for this site but one that Officers had brought back to Committee following legal advice in relation to the application of conditions via a legal agreement. The application was being reported back to Members as a procedural matter to enable Officers to issue the decision notice.

The Committee accepted the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that, subject to the applicant entering into a deed of variation in respect of the Section 106 legal obligation entered into for the planning permission granted for 17 dwellings under LPA reference 3/09/1370/FP to cover the matters now detailed, application 3/11/0370/FP be granted subject to the conditions now detailed.

RESOLVED – that, subject to the applicant entering into a deed of variation in respect of the Section 106 legal obligation entered into for the planning permission granted for 17 dwellings under LPA reference 3/09/1370/FP to cover the matters now detailed, in respect of application 3/11/0370/FP, planning permission be granted, subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

411 (A) 3/11/1174/FP AND (B) 3/11/1159/LB - REPAIR,
REFURBISHMENT AND EXTENSION AND CHANGE OF
USE OF BUILDING TO TOWN COUNCIL OFFICES AT THE
COTTAGE, SAYESBURY MANOR, SAWBRIDGEWORTH,
CM21 9AN FOR SAWBRIDGEWORTH TOWN COUNCIL

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of applications 3/11/1174/FP and 3/11/1159/LB, planning permission and listed building consent be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendations of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED – that in respect of applications 3/11/1174/FP and 3/11/1159/LB, planning permission and listed building consent be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

412 3/11/1280/OP - RESIDENTIAL DEVELOPMENT AT LAND TO THE SOUTH OF BALDOCK ROAD, BUNTINGFORD FOR MR ROFF

Mr Roff addressed the Committee in support of the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1280/OP, outline planning permission be refused for the reasons now detailed.

Councillor S Basra addressed the Committee in support of the application as the local ward Member. He commented that the application would create 3 dwellings in what was a nice cul-de-sac. Councillor Basra stated that there were no problems with access from Baldock Road and urged Members to approve the application.

Councillor S Bull echoed the points raised by Councillor Basra, in particular, the point about the acceptable access from Baldock Road. He stated that the Environment Agency, Hertfordshire Highways and Buntingford Town Council had raised no objections. Councillor Bull also urged the Committee to support this application.

Councillor M Newman commented that the principal concern for Officers appeared to be the cramped nature of the proposed development. He stressed that when compared to a site in Hunsdon and other applications that had been approved, the proposed development was very well spaced out by comparison.

The Director reminded Members that they should make their judgement in relation to the Local Plan policies that were relevant to this application. Members were reminded that this was an outline application and full details in respect of the layout of the site were not known at this stage. He commented that Members would only be approving this application in principle if they wanted to support it at this stage.

The Director advised that Members should bear in mind that policies in the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007 were not supportive of applications that were beyond the outer boundary of a town in the rural area of the District.

The Committee was advised not to place significant weight on the issue of this outline application providing a contribution to the housing supply in the District. The Director stressed that even if a full application was submitted for 4 to 5 houses, this was not considered to be significant in land supply terms.

The Director advised that Members should consider the potential impact of the adjoining uses on the proposed development.

Councillor Mrs R Cheswright commented that the site was very well screened and would not be unduly cramped in nature. She stated that 3 houses would sit very well in this location.

The Chairman reminded Members that this was only an outline application and the full application could be for more than 3 houses. Members were reminded that approving this scheme was only to establish the principle of development.

In response to a query from Councillor J Demonti as to whether the Committee could attach a condition to this application restricting the site to 3 dwellings, the Director stressed that such a condition may not be able to achieve the objective sought as separate new full applications could be submitted.

Councillor S Bull proposed and Councillor M Newman seconded, a motion that outline application 3/11/1280/OP be approved subject to the total number of residential units within the development not exceeding 3 and the maximum height of any proposed buildings not exceeding

6 metres to the eaves and 9 metres to the roof ridges, as proposed within the submitted application.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee rejected the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that outline application 3/11/1280/OP be refused planning permission for the reasons now detailed.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1280/OP, planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

- 1. Outline permission time limit (1T032)
- 2. Outline submission of details (2E012)
- 3. The total number of residential units within the development hereby permitted in outline shall not exceed 3 and the maximum height of any proposed buildings shall not exceed 6 metres to the eaves and 9 metres to the roof ridges, as proposed within the submitted application.

Reason: To ensure the provision of an appropriate form of development that is compatible with the context of the surrounding area; in accordance with the parameters set out within the application and accompanying Design and Access Statement, and in accordance with policy ENV1 of the Local Plan.

- 4. Approved drawings (2E102) 210070DWG004A; 210070DWG003D
- 5. Programme of archaeological work (2E024)
- 6. The detailed layout plans to be submitted for

approval of reserved matters shall indicate the provision of a 1.8m wide footway between the site and the end of the existing footway along Baldock Road to the east of the site. No occupation of any development shall occur until the footway has been constructed.

Reason: To ensure the provision of an appropriate footway link in the interests of highway safety and convenience for pedestrians.

- 7. Wheel washing (3V251)
- 8. Prior to the commencement of the development, a scheme for the protection of dwellings against external noise shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority. All works which form part of the approved scheme shall be completed prior to the occupation of any permitted dwelling.

Reason: In order to ensure an adequate level of amenity for residents of the new dwellings in accordance with Policy ENV25 of the East Herts Local Plan second Review April 2007.

- 9. Construction hours of working (6NO72)
- 10. Prior to the commencement of development, a detailed survey and assessment of the site shall take place to determine if the land is contaminated and, if so, what remediation measures are necessary. Any necessary remediation shall include measures to decontaminate the site (specifying actions and target levels relating to any contaminants found) and prevent pollution of groundwater and surface water. All details of any survey, assessment and proposed remediation works

(complete with a timescale) pursuant to this condition shall be submitted to and agreed in writing by the Local Planning Authority and development shall only take place in accordance with the agreed details.

Reason: To minimise and prevent pollution of the land and the water environment and in accordance with PPS23 - Planning and Pollution Control.

Directives:

- 1. Street naming and numbering (19SN4)
- 2. Please note that if, either before or during construction works, it is discovered that the site is contaminated the responsibility for safe development and secure occupancy of the site lies with the developer.

Summary of Reasons for Decision

The proposal has been considered with regard to the policies of the Development Plan (East of England Plan May 2008, Hertfordshire County Structure Plan, Minerals Local Plan, Waste Local Plan and the saved policies of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007), and in particular policies SD1, SD2, GBC2, GBC3, TR2, TR7, ENV1, ENV2, ENV11, BH1, BH2, BH3 and IMP1 and PPS 1: Delivering Sustainable Development, and PPS 3: Housing. The balance of the considerations having regard to those policies and the location of the site between the existing development to the North West of the site and the approved residential development under ref: 3/10/2040/OP to the South is that permission should be granted.

3/11/1448/FP - ERECTION OF 5 NEW DWELLINGS
INCLUDING 2 AFFORDABLE UNITS WITH ASSOCIATED
ACCESS ROAD AND LANDSCAPING AT LITTLE
ORCHARD, OFF ASTON END ROAD, ASTON FOR JC AND
LB THOMSON TRUST

Mr Nick Gray addressed the Committee in opposition to the application. Mr Peter Newson spoke for the application.

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1448/FP, planning permission be refused for the reasons now detailed.

The Director referred Members to the additional representations schedule. Members were advised that in terms of the proposed condition requested by the applicant, Officers did not consider that this would meet the appropriate tests. Officers were also concerned that the issue of land ownership and control of the hedge which required trimming remained unclear. There were also concerns that there was no clear prospect that the works could be achieved, and therefore, a condition to require this was not considered to be appropriate.

The Committee Chairman stated that Councillor A Jackson, as the local ward Member, fully endorsed the position of Aston Parish Council and had urged the Committee to consider the wider benefits of approving this application. Councillor Jackson had commented that the application should only be approved if all aspects of the application met with the approval of Hertfordshire Highways.

Councillor Jackson was of the view that this application provided an ideal opportunity for Aston to make a contribution towards housing supply in East Herts. The Committee Chairman referred Members to paragraph 7.7 of the report now submitted. He stated that the application site was in the green belt where the starting point for affordable housing was 100% as opposed to the

40% provided by this application.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee accepted the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services that application 3/11/1448/FP be refused planning permission for the reasons now detailed.

RESOLVED – that in respect of application 3/11/1448/FP, planning permission be refused for the reasons detailed in the report now submitted.

414 3/11/1421/FP - ERECTION OF MARQUEE BETWEEN
MARCH AND AUGUST FOR EVENTS AND HIRE AT
BISHOP'S STORTFORD RUGBY CLUB, SILVER LEYS,
HADHAM ROAD, BISHOP'S STORTFORD, CM23 2QE FOR
BISHOP'S STORTFORD RUGBY CLUB

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1421/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

Councillor T Page addressed the Committee in opposition to the application, as he had concerns in relation to neighbour notification, parking and noise concerns relating to the use of the site. Councillor Page was concerned that only 2 notifications had been sent to Dane Park addresses and none to Dane Acres.

Councillor Page expressed concerns that residents experienced problems with car parking in Dane Park and Dane Acres and referred to a recent rugby club function on 5 November 2011, when emergency vehicles would have been unable to access Dane Acres due to inconsiderate parking.

Councillor Page commented that the principle of development in this location was flawed and was inconsistent with the policies of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007, in particular policy ENV24.

He expressed concerns in relation to the impact on neighbour amenity as well as the visual impact of the proposed marquee in what was an open area.

Councillor Page also referred to concerns from Environmental Health in relation to noise management when events were being held inside the proposed marquee. He commented that the marquee would be out of keeping in relation to existing sensitive buildings in the vicinity of the site.

Councillor Page referred to other uses of the site adding to the pressure on the sports amenity offer at the Rugby Club and stressed that this was contrary to policy LRC1 of the East Local Plan Second Review April 2007. He expressed concerns that parking arrangements were also contrary to policy TR7.

Councillor Page left the room after addressing the Committee due to a personal and prejudicial interest (Minute 405 refers).

Councillor D Andrews sought and was given clarification that there would be no permanent foundations underneath the proposed marquee. Councillors J Demonti and A Burlton echoed all of the concerns raised by Councillor Page.

The Director acknowledged Members' concerns that it was difficult to control the emission of noise from a marquee. Members were advised that a condition had been included stating that prior to the first use of the marquee, a noise management plan would have to be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority.

The Director acknowledged the parking concerns but stated that any additional parking would occur in the evening at weekends at times separate to rugby matches. Members were advised that Officers considered that a trial period of operation under circular 11/95 was a position that could be supported hence the

recommendation for approval.

In response to a query from Councillor D Andrews, the Director stated that the conditions could be firmed up to state that any planning permission would be for a limited period only, expiring on 10 November 2012 and the marquee would be in place from 1 March to 31 August 2012.

The Director advised that policy LRC1 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007 was intended to prevent the loss of sports facilities and no such facilities were threatened by this application. Officers were also of the view that a noise management plan and parking controls would prevent problems with noise and parking.

Councillor J Demonti proposed and Councillor J Taylor seconded, a motion that application 3/11/1421/FP be refused as the application was contrary to policies LRC1, ENV24 and TR7 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared LOST.

Councillor D Andrews proposed and Councillor M Newman seconded, a motion that application 3/11/1421/FP be granted subject to an additional condition stating that prior to the first use of the marquee, a plan showing the provision of additional temporary parking in addition to that shown within the application, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the local planning authority and the approved parking provision must be available at all times when the marquee is in use.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now detailed.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1421/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the following conditions:

 This permission shall be for a limited period only, expiring on 10 November 2012, and the marquee shall be in place from 1st March to 31st August.

Reason: In order that the impact of the development can be assessed over a trial period having regard to the amenities of local residents.

2. Prior to the first use of the marquee hereby approved a Noise Management Plan detailing measures to contain music and speech noise shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority, and thereafter the use of the marquee should accord with the approved details.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of residents of nearby properties, in accordance with policy ENV24 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

3. No external loudspeaker systems shall be installed without the prior written permission of the Local Planning Authority.

Reason: To safeguard the amenities of residents of nearby properties, in accordance with policy ENV24 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

4. Prior to the first use of the marquee hereby approved, a plan showing the provision of additional temporary parking, in addition to that shown within the application, shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the

local planning authority. The approved parking provision shall thereafter be available at all times when the marquee is in use.

Reason: To ensure the provision of adequate parking for the use in accordance with policy TR7 of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007.

5. Approved Plans (2E102).

Directives:

- 1. Other Legislation (01OL)
- 2. For the avoidance of doubt, you are reminded of the requirements of the premises licence for the site.

Summary of Reasons for Decision

The proposal has been considered with regard to the policies of the Development Plan (East of England Plan May 2008, Hertfordshire County Structure Plan, Minerals Local Plan, Waste Local Plan and the saved policies of the East Herts Local Plan Second Review April 2007), and in particular policies SD2, TR7, ENV1, ENV24, BH1 and LRC1. The balance of the considerations having regard to those policies is that permission should be granted.

3/11/1592/FP - CHANGE OF USE FROM INDUSTRIAL (B1/B2/B8) TO GYMNASIUM (D2) AT 2 HASLEMERE INDUSTRIAL ESTATE, PIG LANE, BISHOP'S STORTFORD, CM23 3HG FOR MRS V BARLOW

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1592/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED – that in respect of application 3/11/1592/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1516/FO - MINOR MATERIAL AMENDMENT TO INCREASE LENGTH OF APPROVED TWO STOREY SIDE EXTENSION BY 0.35M (REFERENCE 3/11/0831/FP) AT 2 TUDOR MANOR FARM COTTAGES, WHITE STUBBS LANE, BAYFORD, SG13 8QA FOR MRS K HOPSON

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1516/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1516/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1380/FP - CHANGE OF USE FROM A1 (RETAIL) TO USE AS TANNING AND BEAUTY SALON (SUI GENERIS) WITH WALL MOUNTED AIR CONDITIONING UNIT AT 96 SOUTH STREET, BISHOP'S STORTFORD, CM23 3BG FOR MR S VAUGHAN

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1380/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1380/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

418 3/11/1360/FP - CONSTRUCTION OF A DETACHED DOUBLE GARAGE WITH LOG STORE AT THE HUNTING BOX, PATMORE HEATH, ALBURY SG11 2LX FOR MR M CUTHBERT

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1360/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

RESOLVED – that in respect of application 3/11/1360/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

3/11/1430/FP - CHANGE OF USE OF LAND (AS HATCHED IN RED ON PLAN NO. 1289) TO RESIDENTIAL CURTILAGE, NEW STABLES AND TENNIS COURT. EXCAVATION OF FORMER POND AND ASSOCIATED LANDSCAPING AT LITTLE HORMEADBURY FARM, THE STREET, LITTLE HORMEAD, BUNTINGFORD, SG9 0LS FOR MR G DUFFY

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1430/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1430/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

420 3/11/1546/FP - ERECTION OF DETACHED CAR PORT OUTBUILDING AT GREAT HORMEAD BURY, GREAT HORMEAD, BUNTINGFORD, SG9 0NH FOR MR HOPKINS

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of application 3/11/1546/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the recommendation of the Director of Neighbourhood Services as now submitted.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of application 3/11/1546/FP, planning permission be granted subject to the conditions detailed in the report now submitted.

421 P/11/0015/A - UNAUTHORISED DISPLAY OF PLACARD ADVERTISEMENTS WITHIN THE DISTRICT OF EAST HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of the sites relating to P11/0015/A, enforcement action be authorised on the basis now detailed.

Councillor D Andrews praised the work of the Enforcement Team in tackling the problem of illegal signage across the District. Councillor Andrews stated that he was particularly frustrated by the signage that was attached to Highway furniture. He referred to such

activity as an offence under the Highways Act 1980.

In response to a query from Councillor T Page on time limits for this enforcement action, the Director stressed that a poster patrol took place 3 to 4 times a year and enforcement action as proposed in the report now submitted, was a fairly low priority when compared to the usual breaches of planning control.

The Director commented that Officers had written to the appellant stating that such posters must be taken down and should not be erected in future but there had been reoccurrences. Members were advised this aspect of enforcement work was very difficult in that posters taken down by Officers on a Wednesday had been replaced by the appellant in the form of a huge banner in Bishop's Stortford the following Sunday.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee accepted the Director's recommendation for enforcement action to be authorised in respect of the sites relating to P/11/0015/A on the basis now detailed.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of P/11/0015/A, the Director of Neighbourhood Services, in conjunction with the Director of Internal Services, be authorised to take enforcement action on the basis now detailed.

422 E/11/0234/B - BREACH OF A S106 AGREEMENT, WHICH RESTRICTS THE PROPERTY TO BE OCCUPIED BY PERSONS OVER 50 YEARS OF AGE, AT 11 STOCKING HILL. COTTERED

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of the site relating to E/11/0234/B, no further action be authorised in respect of the land at Stocking Hill, Cottered.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee accepted the Director's recommendation that

no further action be authorised in respect of E/11/0234/B in respect of land at Stocking Hill, Cottered.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of E/11/0234/B, no further action be authorised in respect of the land at Stocking Hill, Cottered.

423 E/11/0174/A - THE UNAUTHORISED ERECTION OF A
PARTIALLY ROOFED AREA OF RAISED DECKING AND
THE CREATION OF A FENCED ENCLOSURE AT THE
BRAMBLES, 117 HIGH STREET, BUNTINGFORD, SG9 9AF

The Director of Neighbourhood Services recommended that, in respect of the site relating to E/11/0174/A, enforcement action be authorised on the basis now detailed.

Councillor S Bull commented on whether the appellant had been given a reasonable opportunity to rectify this breach of planning control. The Director confirmed that there had been no response from the appellant to written correspondence from Officers.

Councillor S Bull proposed and Councillor Mrs R Cheswright seconded, a motion that Enforcement Action be authorised in respect of E/11/0174/A in respect of unauthorised development at The Brambles, 117 High Street, Buntingford.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, this motion was declared CARRIED.

The Committee accepted the Director's recommendation for enforcement action to be authorised in respect of the site relating to E/11/0174/A on the basis now detailed.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that in respect of E/11/0174/A, the Director of Neighbourhood Services, in conjunction with the Director of Internal Services, be authorised to take enforcement action on the basis now detailed.

424 CONFIRMATION OF EAST HERTFORDSHIRE DISTRICT COUNCIL TREE PRESERVATION ORDER (NO. 7) 2011 P/TPO 563 '103, NEW ROAD, WARE, HERTS

The Director of Neighbourhood Services submitted a report recommending that a Tree Preservation Order (TPO) be confirmed as an opposed order to protect trees at 103 New Road. Ware.

After being put to the meeting and a vote taken, the Committee supported the Director's recommendation that Tree Preservation Order (No 7), Ref P/TPO 563 2011 be confirmed as an opposed Order.

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that (A) Tree Preservation Order (No 7), Ref P/TPO 563 2011 be confirmed as an opposed Order; and

(B) the Director of Neighbourhood Services be authorised to bring the order into operation.

425 <u>ITEMS FOR REPORTING AND NOTING</u>

<u>RESOLVED</u> – that the following reports be noted:

- (A) Appeals against refusal of planning permission / non determination;
- (B) Planning Appeals lodged;
- (C) Planning Appeals: Inquiry and Informal Hearing dates; and
- (D) Planning Statistics.

The meeting closed at 8.47 pm

Chairman	
Date	